
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 19th December, 
2018

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Guildhall



2

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Information for Members of the Public

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, 
access to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt 
as you face the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall.  There is 
dedicated disabled parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings 
are held on the ground floor, which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair 
user or have restricted mobility and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email 
the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make any necessary arrangements to 
assist your visit.

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect 
copies of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents 
used in the preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot 
of each report. Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' 
for which it is anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither 
reports nor background papers are open to public inspection.

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to 
report on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio 
recording and providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used 
to report on the proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. 
Accordingly, the attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and 
broadcast. By choosing to attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your 
consent to being filmed or recorded and for any footage to be broadcast or published.  

Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings 
are published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect 
will be posted in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting 
of the City Council he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and 
audio being published live to the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their 
discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would 
prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider that continued recording might 
infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision.

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is 
allowed for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any 
matter on the Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 
p.m. on the last working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing 
the officer mentioned below.

If you have any queries about this Agenda or require any details of background papers, or to 
discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, film, video or sound recording please 
contact Margaret Johnson, Democratic Services Administrator, Democratic Services, 
Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722085 (direct line); E-Mail 
Address:  committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of 
ethnic minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information.

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also 
available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website 
Address: worcester.gov.uk



3

Audit and Governance Committee
Wednesday, 19 December 2018

Members of the Committee:-
Chairman: Councillor Alan Amos (C)

Vice-Chairman: Councillor George Squires (L)

Councillor Patricia Agar (LCo)
Councillor Allah Ditta (C)
Councillor Stephen Hodgson (C)

Councillor Neil Laurenson (G)
Councillor Andrew Roberts (C)
Councillor Richard Udall (LCo)

C = Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-Operative

AGENDA

Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)

1. APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES To receive details of any Member nominated to 
attend the meeting in place of a Member of the 
Committee.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST To receive any declarations of interest.

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, 
each speaker being allocated a maximum of five 
minutes, for members of the public to present a 
petition, ask a question or comment on any item 
on the Agenda or within the remit of the 
Committee.

4. MINUTES 
Page(s) 1 - 4

The minutes of the meeting held on 19th 
September 2018 to be approved and signed.

5. 2018/19 INTERNAL AUDIT 
PROGRESS REPORT TO 30TH 
NOVEMBER 2018 
Page(s) 5 - 18
Contact 
Officer 

Andy Bromage, Head 
of Internal Audit 
Shared Service
Tel: 01905 722051

The Committee note the report contents

6. DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
FOR 2019-20. 
Page(s) 19 - 28
Contact 
Officer 

Andy Bromage, Head 
of Internal Audit 
Shared Service
Tel: 01905 722051

The Committee notes the Draft Annual Internal 
Audit Plan and Key Performance Indicators. 



4

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of 
sufficient urgency as to warrant consideration.



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

19th September 2018

Present: Councillor Alan Amos in the Chair

Councillors Agar, Ditta, S. Hodgson, 
Laurenson, Roberts, G. Squires (Vice-
Chairman) and Udall

Officers: Mark Baldwin
Andy 
Bromage

Head of Finance
Head of Internal Audit 
Shared Service

  Tim O’Gara       Deputy Director -     
Governance

45 Declarations of Interest 

None. 

46 Public Participation 

None.

47 Minutes 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 26th July 2018 be 
approved as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

48 Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 

The Deputy Director – Governance presented the Committee’s Annual Report. He 
explained that the Committee produces a summary of the work carried out each 
year and went on to highlight the main points of the report.  Other governance 
issues raised during the year were a report regarding the Funding and Decision 
making of Worcester Community Trust and the Committee reviewed the process 
for the identification of projects that could be funded from potential developer 
contributions. This process will be repeated annually.

The Chairman praised the report and said it was both readable and useful. He 
went on to suggest it could be used as part of the induction for new members of 
the Committee in the future.

RESOLVED: That the Committee approve the Audit and Governance 
Committee Annual Report 2017/18; and that the Annual Report be 
submitted to Full Council for information.

49 Internal Audit Progress Report 

The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service presented his report on the progress of 
the Internal Audit. He noted that no credible risks had been identified to bring to 
the Committee. Further reviews will be presented as the work is finalised. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



19th September 2018 2

The Chairman commended the Head of Internal Audit for the readable and useful 
report. 

The Head of Internal Audit answered members’ questions including the number of 
invoices still outstanding: some 336 items. He explained that several service 
areas are coming together to deal with this matter.

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the report.

50 Internal Audit Charter Update 

The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service presented the report on the revised 
Internal Audit Charter 2018. The Charter was last reviewed in July 2017 and the 
External Assessors have made some suggestions to enhance the Charter. The 
Charter will come before the Committee on an annual basis or if there are any 
material changes.

RESOLVED: That the Committee approve the revised Internal Audit 
Charter 2018.

51 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy

The Head of Finance presented the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy. It was last 
approved by the Audit and Governance Committee in June 2016. As money 
laundering now has a higher profile, it was appropriate to add an extra appendix 
which sets out the definition and explanation of money laundering as well as the 
process to follow if concerns are raised. The Head of Finance went on to answer 
Members’ questions regarding the policy.

RESOLVED: That the Committee approve the anti-fraud and corruption 
policy.

52 Annual Audit Letter 

The Head of Finance presented the Annual Audit Letter. He explained that the 
Annual Audit Letter summarises the key messages from the work external 
auditors carried out for the City Council for the year ended 31st March 2017/18.

He went on to say, in summary, our external auditors have provided an 
unqualified opinion (i.e. a ‘clean bill of health’) on our Financial Statements, our 
Value for Money arrangements and our Whole of Governance Accounts 
submission. The Head of Finance went on to answer Members’ questions.  

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the details of the Annual Audit 
Letter for 2017/18.

53 Any Other Business 

1. The Chairman advised the Committee that this would be the last Audit and 
Governance Committee to be attended by Tim O’Gara, Deputy Director –
Governance who would be leaving the City Council next month for a new 
role in Bristol. The Chairman thanked him for all of his hard work and 

Page 2



19th September 2018 3

support given to the Chairman and his honest advice. Members’ echoed The 
Chairman’s comments and added their good wishes.

The Committee noted that Mark Baldwin will be taking over as Chief Officer 
for the Audit and Governance Committee.

The Deputy Director thanked the Chairman and Committee.

2. A question was raised regarding guidance for Members on membership of 
outside bodies. The Deputy Director explained that this was a matter for 
the Standards Committee who had reviewed the Guidance on Outside 
Bodies last year. He asked that this report should be circulated to Members.

Duration of the meeting: 7 p.m. – 7.34 p.m. 

Chairman at the meeting on
19th December 2018

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Version 01 1 Author: Andy Bromage

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 19th December 2018

Report of: Head of Internal Audit Shared Service, Worcestershire 
Internal Audit Shared Service

Subject:   2018/19 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT TO 30th 
        NOVEMBER 2018.

1. Recommendation

1.1 The Committee note the report.

2. Background

2.1 To provide an update on Internal Audit’s progress towards meeting its 
objectives as set out in the audit plan for 2018/2019 as approved by the 
Audit Committee on 21st March 2018. 

2.2 The Council is required under Regulation 5 of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”.

3. Summary of Activity:
3.1 Progress in regard to 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan.

3.2 Progress continues to be made in regard to the 2018/19 plan with the 
following audits on-going as at the 30th November 2018 and progressing 
through the final stages:

 GDPR – Draft Report Stage
 Operations - Training Records  - Draft Report Stage

Fieldwork continues in regards to 
 ICT
 NNDR
 Debtors
 Main Ledger
 Payroll
 Treasury Management

3.3 Confirmation of their assurance and summary details of the outturns will 
be provided for committee perusal when they have been finalised.

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



Version 01 2 Author: Andy Bromage

3.4 Reports completed since the 19th September 2018 in regard to the 
2018-19 Internal Audit Plan.

3.5 Audit reports completed since the previous progress report meeting of 19th 
September 2018 include:

3.6 Tourism Strategy
3.7 The review found the following areas of the system were working well:

o There is an action plan in place which focuses on driving key areas 
in the 2017-2022 tourism strategic plan and is being used as a 
driver to focus on the delivery of the strategy. 

o The tourism strategy plan shows a vision as to where the city is 
aiming to getting towards e.g. becoming a prosperous city and that 
the strategy identifies the strengths in the city as well as the known 
weaknesses.

3.8 The review found the following areas of the system where controls could 
be strengthened:

o Financial Budget Summary
o Action Plan Review
o Tourism marketing internally and externally
o Tourist Information Centre

3.9 There were 1 ‘high’, 2 ‘medium’ and 1 ‘low’ priority recommendations 
reported.

Type of Audit:  Full System
Report issued: 7th October 2018
Assurance:  Moderate

3.10 Leisure
3.11 The review found the following areas of the system were working well:

 The Performance Framework is a focal point for performance and 
progress

 There is regular, consistent monitoring of performance occurring on 
varying levels between the Authority and the Operator.

 Compliments and complaints procedures enable both parties to be 
involved where necessary.

3.12 The Management Fee has seen a pre-agreed stepped increase from the 
commencement of the contract.  The last stepped increase took place in 
2018 and a further stepped increase is due to take place in 2019. With 
any increase in management fees there is always the potential for an 
escalated risk to the Council. However, the risk is mitigated through 
regular monitoring of the contract which includes financial performance 
along with a written assurance received from the Finance Director of 
Freedom Leisure. With the current evidence in regard to performance 
trends and results there is nothing to suggest an emerging risk but this is 
to be closely reviewed through the ongoing contract monitoring and 
appropriate intervention and action taken should a risk begin to emerge.

Page 6



Version 01 3 Author: Andy Bromage

3.13 There was 1 ‘low’ priority recommendation reported.

Type of Audit:  Full System
Report issued: 20th November 2018
Assurance:  Significant

A summary table is provided below of the finalised audits:

2018/19
Tourism Strategy Moderate
Leisure Contract Monitoring Significant

3.14 A rolling testing programme on Debtors and Creditors has been 
undertaken during quarter 2 and is continuing through quarter 3.  Testing 
results so far do not indicate any new or emerging risks to be brought to 
the attention of Committee. The rolling testing programme results will be 
amalgamated at the end of quarter 3 and formal audit reports issued with 
any findings in quarter 4. 

4. National Fraud Initiative (NFI)
4.1 The 2018/19 NFI upload of data took place during October 2018.  Various 

data sets were required, for example, Payroll, Creditors, along with a host 
of others provided by Worcestershire Regulatory Services and Civica. 
WIASS can confirm that all the required data sets have been uploaded for 
Worcester City Council.  A further data upload is expected during 
December in regards to the single person discount and electoral 
registration. WIASS continues to play a supporting role for all the Partners 
in regard to this exercise.

5. Follow-Up Audits

5.1 Where appropriate follow-up audit work has been undertaken e.g. 
Debtors, the results of which are compiled on an on-going basis and 
provided in summary form for information at Appendix 4.  Any material 
exceptions arising from audit ‘follow up’ are reported to Audit Committee.  
Good progress, in the main, has been made in satisfying a number of the 
‘older’ recommendations which are now seen to be satisfactorily 
implemented. In a minority of cases, where a further review is scheduled 
to take place in the area, any outstanding recommendations will be 
revisited as part of the review.  There is currently an exception to report 
in regard to Debtors 2017/18 in respect of the Housing Benefit aged 
debts.  A high priority recommendation was reported and action plan 
agreed for implementation by 30th September 2018 to address aged 
Housing Benefit debt. Although there has been some progress in the 

Page 7



Version 01 4 Author: Andy Bromage

writing off of some of the aged Housing debts, with individual debts being 
cleared on the Authorisation of the appropriate Heads of Service and 
ongoing review of the outstanding debt, there has not been any formal 
action taken with regards to jointly reviewing and documenting the 
approach as per the management response i.e. establishing a protocol. 
This has been escalated to the Head of Finance and review of 
implementation will continue with progress reported to Committee.

6. Risk Management

6.1 Embedding the revised risk process continues and Committee will be 
appraised of the key risk areas on a regular basis.  The Pentana system 
continues to be developed and is used to capture and report on risk.  
Regular reporting has been established in regards to risk information with 
updates being brought before this Committee.  

7.1 Appendices

7.2 Appendix 1 shows the progress that has been made since 1st April 2018 
to the 30th November 2018 towards delivering the Internal Audit Plan set 
for the year.  As at 30th November 2018 a total of 213 days had been 
delivered against a target of 327 days for 2018/19.

7.3 Appendix 2 shows the performance indicators for the service.  These 
indicators were agreed by Audit Committee on the 21st March 2018.

7.4 Appendix 3 shows the ‘high’ and ‘medium’ priority recommendations which 
have been reported.

7.5 Appendix 4 provides the Committee with audit report ‘Follow Up’ actions 
that have been undertaken to monitor audit recommendation 
implementation progress by management.

Ward(s): N/A
Contact Officer: Andy Bromage. 
Telephone: 01905 722051  
Email: andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: None

Page 8



Version 01 5 Author: Andy Bromage

APPENDIX 1

Delivery against Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19
as at 30th November 2018

Audit Area Original
2018/19 Plan Days Forecasted days to 

the 31/12/18
AUDIT DAYS USED 

TO 30/11/18

Core Financial Systems
(See note 1) 98 73 48
Corporate Audits 6 6 5
Other Systems Audits 
(See note 2) 150 77 120
Sub Total 254 156 173

Audit Management Meetings 30 21 17
Corporate Meetings / 
Reading 25 18 16
Annual Plans, Reports and 
Audit Committee support 18 12 7
Other chargeable (See note 3) 0 0 0
 Sub Total 73 51 40

 Total 327 207 213

Audit days used are rounded to the nearest whole.

Note 1:      This figure includes Quality Assurance monitoring work and the Revenues and Benefits 
Shared Service audit work undertaken. ‘Core Financial Systems’ are predominantly audited in 
quarters 3 and 4 in order to maximise the assurance provided for the Annual Governance 
Statement and Statement of Accounts. A rolling programme of testing has been introduced in 
2018/19.

Note 2:   A number of the budgets in this section are ‘on demand’ (e.g. consultancy, 
investigations) so the requirements can fluctuate throughout the quarters.  Over the last two 
quarters there has been a significant demand in regard to investigatory days for stage 2 
complaints and other work. 

Note 3:         IT issues which have led to interruptions in delivery and required resource to rectify 
are reflected in this figure.

Page 9



Version 01 6 Author: Andy Bromage

48

5

120

73

6

77

98

6

150

0 40 80 120 160

Core Financial Systems(See note 1)

Corporate Audits 

Other Systems Audits (See note 2)

Audit Plan Days 18/19

Forecasted Days to 
31/12/18

Audit Days Used to 
30/11/18

Comparison of Audit Days by Category 

327

207 213

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Audit Plan Days 18/19
Forecasted Delivery to 
31/12/18
Actual Days Delivered to 
30/11/18

Comparison of Audit Day Delivery

Comparison of Days 
Total Budget-v-Forecasted-v-Actual

AU
DI

T 
DA

Y 
CO

U
N

T

17

16

7

0

21

18

12

0

30

25

18

0

0 20 40

Audit Management Meetings

Corporate Meetings / Reading

Annual Plans and Reports and 
Audit Cttee Support

Other chargeable

Audit Plan Days 18/19
Forecasted Days to 31/12/18
Audit Days Used to 30/11/18

Comparison of Non Audit Days by Category

NUMBER OF DAYS

CA
TE

G
O

RY

Page 10



Version 01 7 Author: Andy Bromage

APPENDIX 2

Performance against Key Performance Indicators 2018-2019

The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against some of 
the following key performance indicators for 2018/19. Other key performance indicators link to 
overall governance requirements of Worcester City Council e.g. KPI 4 to 6.  The 2018/19 position 
will be populated on a cumulative basis throughout the year.

WIASS operates within, and conforms to, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013.

* Below target figure due to 4 new starters in April 2018 therefore training and mentoring continuing during the 
year.

KPI Trend/Target 
requirement

2018/19 
Position (as 

at 30th 
November 

2018)

Frequency of 
Reporting

Operational
1 No. of audits 

achieved during 
the year 

Per target Target = 12 
(minimum)

Delivered = 2
2 @ draft

6 in progress  

When Audit 
Committee convene

2 Percentage of 
Plan delivered

>90% of agreed 
annual plan

65% When Audit 
Committee convene

3 Service 
productivity

Positive 
direction year on 

year (Annual 
target 74%)

56%* When Audit 
Committee convene

Monitoring & Governance
4 No. of ‘high’ 

priority 
recommendations 

Downward
(minimal)

1 When Audit 
Committee convene

5 No. of moderate 
or below 
assurances

Downward
(minimal)

1 When Audit 
Committee convene

6 ‘Follow Up’ 
results

Management 
action plan 

implementation 
date exceeded

(nil)

1 When Audit 
Committee convene

Customer Satisfaction
7 No. of customers 

who assess the 
service as 
‘excellent’

Upward
(increasing)

Nil to report When Audit 
Committee convene

Page 11



Version 01 8 Author: Andy Bromage

APPENDIX 3
‘HIGH’ AND ‘MEDIUM’ PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS 2018/19

Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response and 
Action Plan

Audit: Tourism Strategy
Overview:  Full system audit.
Assurance:  Moderate
1 High Financial Budget Summary

There is no year shown on the budget 
spreadsheet being used by the tourism 
strategy team, so it is hard to tell whether 
or not the budget is for 2018/19 or 
2017/18 or just a general budget for the 
tourism strategy. 

Budget Controls 

After conducting some testing it was 
identified that : - 
1.) That there is no review date on the 
budget spreadsheet. 
2.) That there is no version control for the 
Budget document provided by the tourism 
strategy team.
3.) That there is no colour formatting i.e. 
RAG rating to identify which items is out 
of budget. 

Commitment 
accounting could be 
impaired and a false 
overview presented if 
sound accounting 
practices are not 
followed leading to 
financial implications 
and potential 
reputation damage to 
the council.

 

To consider adding version 
control in the forecast budget 
summary and include what year 
the budget is reflecting to 
prevent any confusion and 
establish clear accounting 
practices. 

Much like the action plan it is 
recommended to add controls 
to establish better budgetary 
control for example including a 
review date, version control and 
to add conditional formatting to 
enable budget pressure areas to 
be identified. It is 
recommended to consider re-
mapping the forecast sheet to 
include more of a breakdown 
thus providing a better financial 
oversight of financial factors 
that were part of making the 
project a success whilst within 
budget constraints.

Responsible Manager:
Economic Development Team Leader and 
Economic Development Officer.

Implementation date:
Implemented Immediately 

Implementation date:
Implemented Immediately

P
age 12



Version 01 9 Author: Andy Bromage

Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response and 
Action Plan

Budget related to tourism Strategy

Testing identified that : - 
1.) The forecast budget sheet doesn't 
show when it was last updated, Where it 
indicates ‘Spent’ it is hard to identify when 
in the year the figures were entered. 
2.) although there is a description for 
which project it is related to, there is no 
breakdown into how much money has 
been spent on various projects 

Financial Resource

Testing found that there is a budget in 
place for the strategy.  However, this was 
not established until after the start of the 
financial year. 

It is recommended that the 
forecast budget sheet clearly 
identifies all potential spending 
associated with the strategy.

That the forecast budget needs 
to be clearly defined as to which 
financial year it is covering. It 
may be worth including a totals 
section to show the variance 
between the budget allocated 
on a project against what 
money has actually been spent 
to see whether the project is 
under or over budget.

Change to forecast spreadsheet from 
budget spreadsheet to clarify role.

Implementation date:
Noted
Implemented Immediately

Implementation date:

Noted 
Implemented Immediately

2 Medium Action Plan Review

Testing the ‘Action Plan’ identified: 

1.) There is no name of who is assigned to 
the action plan or who updated it. 
2.) There are no dates of when the action 
needs to be completed by.
3.) There are no dates of when the action 
plan was last updated.
4.) There are no hyperlinks to evidence 
what work has been carried out so far to 
show what the success factors are to 
report on. 

The action plan will 
potential become unfit 
for purpose if it is not 
used as a management 
tool and kept up-to-
date.  This could 
potentially lead to 
confusion, wasted 
resource and the 
overall Strategy not 
being delivered which 
could lead to 
reputation damage.  

It is recommended that the 
action plan is re-designed to 
include within the template who 
is assigned to the action, a 
review date and a date that the 
action needs to be completed 
by. 

It is advised to include within 
the re-design the following 
items: -
1.) issue number
2.) Hyperlink to evidence any 

Responsible Manager:
Economic Development Team Leader, 
Economic Development Officer

Noted 

Implementation date:

March to September 2019 

P
age 13



Version 01 10 Author: Andy Bromage

Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response and 
Action Plan

success factors that were 
achieved or reports. 
3.) Name of responsible 
person(s)
4.) Deadline
5.) Status
6.) Days allocated to the 
project.

3 Medium Tourism marketing internally and 
externally

Testing indicated the last external report 
was conducted and issued in 2015 which 
is prior to when the strategy commenced.

There has been no external research 
carried out that can be evidenced since 
the strategy commenced in regard to 
internal marketing. As a consequence 
there is no clear reflection as to how well 
the strategy is achieving the goals. 

With no internal or 
external research 
occurring during the 
delivery of the tourism 
strategy it is difficult to 
show the impact it is 
having and how it is 
achieving it’s goals in a 
wider perspective 
potentially leading to a  
risk of an unclear 
vision, budget 
pressures and  
reputation risk. 

It is recommended that both 
internal and external research 
methods are reconsidered in 
order to capture and provide 
valuable data which can be 
used to inform the Strategy and 
budgetary requirements going 
forwards but also provide 
confirmation of successful 
delivery and value for money. 

Responsible Manager:
Economic Development Team Leader, 
Economic Development Officer

Noted 

Implementation date:

March to September 2019

end

P
age 14



Version 01 11 Author: Andy Bromage

APPENDIX 4
Audit Report Follow Up Programme.

Audit Year

Date Final 
Audit 
Report 
Issued Service Area

Assurance Number of High, 
Medium and Low 
priority 
Recommendations FOLLOW UP

1st 2nd 3rd

      

High and Medium 
Priorities 6mths 
after final report 
issued as long as 
implementation 
date has passed

High and Medium 
Priorities still 
outstanding 
3mths after 
previous follow 
up as long as 
implementation 
date has passed

2017/18
Use of Council 
Asset

2017/
18

19th 
October 
2017

Cleaner & 
Greener

Moderate The audit report made 
3 medium priority 
recommendations in 
relation to usage of van 
located at the Guildhall, 
Transparency and clear 
protocol on Flexi time 
and Plant and 
Equipment location and 
security. 

Follow up 
undertaken 
November 2018 
which confirmed 
that all 
recommendations 
had been 
satisfactory 
implemented. No 
further follow up 
required.

Debtors 2017/
18

28th June 
2018

Finance Moderate The audit report made 
1 high and 1 medium 
priority 
recommendations in 
relation to establishing 
protocol and 
authorisation 
signatories.

Follow up on the 
31st October found 
that both 
recommendations 
were ongoing and 
had not been 
satisfied. This has 
been escalated to 
the Head of 
Finance.

P
age 15



Version 01 12 Author: Andy Bromage

Audit Year

Date Final 
Audit 
Report 
Issued Service Area

Assurance Number of High, 
Medium and Low 
priority 
Recommendations FOLLOW UP

1st 2nd 3rd
2018/19
Tourism Strategy 2018/

19
7th October 
2018

Economic 
Development

Moderate The audit report made 
1 high and 2 medium 
priority 
recommendations in 
relation to budget 
monitoring, action plan 
review and tourism 
marketing.

High priority 
recommendation 
has been satisfied 
in regard to budget 
monitoring.  
Follow up 
planned for 
September 2019 
to coincide with 
the completion of 
the implementation 
plan.

Leisure Contract 2018/
19

27th 
November 
2018

Cleaner 
Greener

Significant The audit reported 1 
low priority finding.  No 
further follow up is 
required. 

end

P
age 16



Version 01 13 Author: Andy Bromage

Conclusion:
IA considers, overall, progress is being made by the respective managers and services with regard to the 
implementation of their action plans against reported Internal Audit recommendations. Although there are a 
couple of audits whereby work continues it is considered that there are legitimate reasons why this is the 
case (for example continuing development, or proposed system changes) or, non material risk items. Core 
financial audits will be followed up as part of the annual audits.

P
age 17



Version 01 14 Author: Andy Bromage

Page 18



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 19th December 2018

Report of: Head of Internal Audit Shared Service, Worcestershire Internal 
Audit Shared Service

Subject: DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR 2019-20.

1. Recommendation

1.1 The Committee notes the Draft Annual Internal Audit Plan and Key 
Performance Indicators. 

2. Background

2.1 To present the Worcester City Council Draft Internal Audit Operational Plan (see 
appendix 1) and the Internal Audit Shared Services set of key performance 
indicators for 2019/20 (see appendix 2) for consideration.

2.2 The Council is required under Regulation 5 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance”.

2.3 To aid compliance with the regulation, the Institute of Internal Auditors Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 details that “Internal auditing is an 
independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value 
and improve an organisation's operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its 
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance 
processes”.

3. Audit Objectives

3.1 The objectives of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service are to:
 examine, evaluate and report on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal 

control and risk management across the Council and recommend 
arrangements to address weaknesses as appropriate; 

 examine, evaluate and report on arrangements to ensure compliance with 
legislation and the Council’s objectives, policies and procedures; 

Page 19 Agenda Item 6



 examine, evaluate and report on procedures to check that the Council’s 
assets and interests are adequately protected and effectively managed; 

 undertake independent investigations into allegations of fraud and 
irregularity in accordance with Council policies and procedures and relevant 
legislation; and

 advise upon the control and risk implications of new systems or other 
organisational changes.

3.2    Formulation of Annual Plan

WIASS operates an Internal Audit Charter which sets out the standards to which 
it operates for this Council.  The draft Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20, which is 
included at Appendix 1, is a risk based plan which takes into account the 
adequacy of the Council’s risk management, performance management, 
challenges, other assurance processes as well as organisational objectives and 
priorities.  It has been based upon the risk priorities per the Corporate and 
Service risk registers as indicated in the Covalent system. Large spend budget 
areas have also been considered, and, direct association has been made to the 
City Plan.  The draft Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 has been agreed with the 
section 151 officer and has been considered by Heads of Service and CLT.  It has 
been formulated with the aim to ensure Worcester City Council meets its 
strategic purposes and delivers the City Plan and has directly linked the various 
aspects to identify the ‘golden thread’ in regards to the City Plan, risk 
identification to Service delivery.  It is brought before the Audit and Governance 
Committee in draft format as the involvement of the Committee is considered to 
be an important facet of good corporate governance, contributing to the internal 
control assurance given in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.

We recognise there are other review functions which provide other sources of 
assurance, both internally and externally, (e.g. ICT Public Service Network 
assurance testing) over aspects of the Council’s operations.  Where possible we 
will seek to place reliance on such work thus reducing the internal audit coverage 
as required.

To try to reduce duplication of effort we understand the importance of working 
with the External Auditors.  The audit plan is shared with the external auditors 
for information along with some of the work that is undertaken during a review.

3.3 Resource Allocation

The Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 has been based upon a resource allocation of 
320 productive audit delivery days but is showing a small reduction on 2018/19’s 
budget of 327.  A summary of the days as well as the detailed plan provision has 
been included with the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 at Appendix 1.  Those 

Page 20



areas that are considered to have a ‘high’ priority will be targeted first where 
practicable in regard to the plan delivery.  A number of areas have been included 
in the plan and are shared with other Partners.  Budgets are split across different 
Partner audit plans to reduce the burden on any one Council but allow the 
delivery of reviews where services are shared. An assessment was made what to 
include in the plan based on the overall risk and governance profile.  A watching 
brief will be kept on the financial systems and a rolling programme of testing will 
take place but they are not considered as the key risk areas due to embedded 
process, control and anti fraud measures. Operational support days are included 
to give a little flexibility and contingency in the plan e.g. consultancy.  These are 
necessary to support the delivery of the plan as a whole. Areas that were 
considered to be emerging risks or areas of mitigated risk but require a watching 
brief have been highlighted for transparency purposes but will not be included in 
the plan for next year. There is a distinct possibility that they will be included in 
the 2020/21 audit plan. 

Due to the continuing changing environment that exists in Local Government the 
plan must be seen as a framework for Internal Audit work for the forthcoming 
year.  There is a need for flexibility in the plan due to a changing risk profile as 
well as emerging risks.  To ensure flexibility there is the possibility that the plan 
will be updated during the year in order to address such challenges.

 

3.4 Financial implications

The estimated charge to the Council for the Internal Audit service for 2019/20 
based upon this plan will be notified to the Client Officer Group when all the 
client plan days across the Shared Service have been agreed.

3.5 Monitoring and reporting of performance against the Plan

Operational progress against the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 will be closely 
monitored by the Head of Service of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared 
Service and will be reported to the Shared Service’s Client Officer Group, which 
comprises the section 151 officers from client organisations’ and to the Audit and 
Governance Committee on a quarterly basis.  The success or otherwise of the 
Internal Audit Shared Service will be determined by the performance against a 
set of performance indicators which have been developed for the service.  These 
have been agreed with the Council’s section 151 officer and are included at 
Appendix 2.  Performance against these indicators will be reported to the Audit 
and Governance Committee at the frequency stipulated in Appendix 2.

Ward(s): N/A
Contact Officer: Andy Bromage. 

Page 21



Telephone: 01905 722051  
Email: andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: None

Page 22



APPENDIX 1

SUMMARY OF DETAILED PROVISIONAL PLAN 

Planned Days 2019/20
Financials 108
Corporate Work 21
Other Systems Audits 121

Sub total 250

Audit management meetings 30
Corporate meetings / reading 20
Annual plans, reports and 
Audit Committee support 20

Sub total 70

TOTAL Audit Days 320

Page 23



APPENDIX 1
Draft 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan

Audit Area Corporate 
Link

Risk 
Register 
link

Inclusion 
due to 

risk

Outline 
resource 
required 
2019/20 
(days)

Priority
2018/19 

Days 
comparison

      

Financial Services      

Debtors
Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

Business as 
usual ☑ 5 Low  

Main Ledger/Budget 
Monitoring/Bank Reconciliation

Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

Business as 
usual ☑ 4 Low  

Creditors#
Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

Business as 
usual ☑ 0 Low  

Payroll (contract monitoring/inhouse)**
Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

Returning 
Service ☑ 16 Low  

Treasury Management
Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

Business as 
usual ☑ 3 Low  

Sub Total    28 8

Council Tax*
Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

 ☑ 6 Low/ 
Medium  

Benefits*
Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

 ☑ 8 Low/ 
Medium  

NNDR*
Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

SF-SRK-002 ☑ 6 Low/ 
Medium  

Client Side Checking
Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

 ☑ 60 Low/ 
Medium  

      

TOTAL    108 98

      

Corporate      

IT Audit*
Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

CRK-012 ☑ 6 Medium  

Risk Management  Business as 
usual

☒   

Transformation 
Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

CRK-009
☒

  

Procurement (new system, exemptions 
& policy adherence, contracts/agreements 
and rolling contracts)

Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

 ☑ 10 Medium  

City Plan Policies (in development) City Plan Business as 
usual  5 Low  

SUB TOTAL    21 6

      

Page 24



Audit Area Corporate 
Link

Risk 
Register 
link

Inclusion 
due to 

risk

Outline 
resource 
required 
2019/20 
(days)

Priority
2018/19 

Days 
comparison

Other Systems Audits     

Community     

Cemetery and Crematorium 
(much change/basic processes -critical 
friend approach)

Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

CS-SRK-
Cremators ☑ 12 High  

CCTV (partnership 
arrangements & monitoring)

Stronger and 
Connected 
Communities

CS-SRK-005  
& 008 ☒   

     

Operations     

Refuse, Recycling and Trade 
Waste (analysis of data - critical friend) 
(Days to be allocated to each area)

Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

OP-SRK-002 ☑ 15 High  

Street Scene     

New system implementation
Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

OP-SRK-005 ☒   

Health & Safety (Depot 12mths on 
follow up)

Underpins City 
Plan 
requirements

OP-SRK-006 ☑ 9 High  

Legal     

Guildhall Use/Income
Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

 ☒   

     

Strategic Housing     

Affordable Housing 
Delivery/Temp Accommodation 
(preliminary work only)

Stronger and 
Connected 
Communities

SH-SRK-002 ☑ 10 Medium  

Asset Management     

Tech-Forge interface with Civica 
& processes **

Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

Returning 
Service ☑ 14 Medium  

Property Investment
Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

 
☒

  

2-4 Copenhagen Street
Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

 
☒

  

Sansome Walk pool site
Sustaining and 
Improving our 
Assets

 
☒

  

      

Economic Development and 
Planning

     

New System Implementation      

Museums**
A Heritage 
City for the 
21st Century

Returning 
Service ☑  8 Medium  

Page 25



Audit Area Corporate 
Link

Risk 
Register 
link

Inclusion 
due to 

risk

Outline 
resource 
required 
2019/20 
(days)

Priority
2018/19 

Days 
comparison

Tourist Information Office**
A Heritage 
City for the 
21st Century

Returning 
Service ☑  5 Medium  

      

Other Operational Work      

Advisory, Consultancy (incl. 
H&S) & Contingency

 N/a  N/a  ☑ 15  

Fraud & Investigations inc NFI  N/a  N/a ☑ 12  

Completion of prior year's 
audits

 N/a  N/a ☑
9  

Report Follow Up (all areas)  N/a  N/a ☑ 12  

SUB TOTAL    121 150

TOTAL    142 254

     

Audit Management Meetings  N/a  N/a ☑ 30  

Corporate Meetings / Reading  N/a  N/a ☑ 20  

Annual Plans, Reports & 
Committee Support

 N/a  N/a ☑
20  

TOTAL    70 70

      

TOTAL CHARGEABLE    320 327

# As part of the shared service for Debtors and Creditors the audits are split between the 
Malvern Hills District Council internal audit plan and the Worcester City Council internal audit 
plan thus giving coverage and assurance but reducing the overall number of days.

*Shared budgets with two other Partners.  Budgets are consolidated to deliver the review for 
all three Partners. 

**New potential risk areas days due to the Service returning to Worcester City Council.

Financial audits will be undertaken on a rolling basis using an analytical analysis to identify 
any potential developing risk areas.  Full reviews will be undertaken if the emerging risks 
and/or trends are identified due to significant change e.g. people or systems.

Page 26



APPENDIX 2

Performance against Key Performance Indicators 2019-2020
The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured 
against some of the following key performance indicators for 2019/20. Other key 
performance indicators link to overall governance requirements of Worcester City 
Council e.g. KPI 4, 5 and 6.  The 2019/20 position will be populated on a cumulative 
basis throughout the year.

WIASS operates within, and conforms to, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013.

KPI Trend/Target 
requirement

2019/20 
Position (as 

at 
XXXXXXXX)

Frequency of 
Reporting

Operational
1 No. of audits 

achieved during 
the year 

Per target Target = 12 
(minimum)

Delivered = 
XX

When Audit 
Committee convene

2 Percentage of 
Plan delivered

>90% of agreed 
annual plan

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

3 Service 
productivity

Positive 
direction year on 

year (Annual 
target 74%)

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

Monitoring & Governance
4 No. of ‘high’ 

priority 
recommendations 

Downward
(minimal)

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

5 No. of moderate 
or below 
assurances

Downward
(minimal)

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

6 ‘Follow Up’ 
results

Management 
action plan 

implementation 
date exceeded

(nil)

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

Customer Satisfaction
7 No. of customers 

who assess the 
service as 
‘excellent’

Upward
(increasing)

XX When Audit 
Committee convene

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 2018/19 Internal Audit Progress Report To 30th November 2018
	6 Draft Internal Audit Plan for 2019-20.

